
Steuben County Industrial Development Agency 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors  

Agenda 
January 23, 2025, 12:00 pm 

 
 
 

1. Call to Order – Quorum present     Strobel 
 

2. Secretary’s Report – December 12, 2024, minutes.   Davidson  
 

3. Audit Presentation- Kristie M. Beach 
 
4. Treasurer’s Report –   December financials    Russo 

        
5. New Business:         

a) Committee Appointments     Johnson 
b) 2025 Board Meeting Dates     Johnson 
c) Financial Disclosures      Johnson 
d) Harris Beach Engagement Letter    Johnson 
e) Clear View Solar, LLC      Staats 
f) Prattsburgh Wind Application    Johnson 
g) Lismore RNG, LLC      Johnson  

     
6. Old Business:      

a) Assignment of NY Pulteney I     Staats 
b) Canisteo Wind Update     Johnson  

 
7. Legislative updates       Johnson 

a) NYSEDC -2025 NY SOS Memo     Johnson 
 

8. Project Updates 
 

9. Adjournment        Strobel 
 
 
 
 

 



Steuben County Industrial Development Agency 
Board of Director’s Meeting Minutes 

December 12, 2024 
 
 

I. Call To Order: The Regular Meeting of the Steuben County Industrial Development Agency 
(IDA) was called to order at 12:04pm by Dean Strobel, Chairman, who noted that a quorum was 
present. 

 
Present: Dean Strobel   Chairman  

Kelly Fitzpatrick  Vice Chair  
  Tony Russo   Treasurer  

Mark Alger   Member 
Michelle Caulfield  Member 
Sarah Creath   Member 
Mike Davidson  Secretary 
James Johnson  Executive Director 
Jill Staats   Deputy Director 
Matt Bull   Dir. of Community and Infrastructure Dev. 
Russ Gaenzle   IDA Counsel 
Kelly Hortman   IDA Administrative Assistant 

   
Guests: Kamala Keeley   Three Rivers Development  
      

 
II. Secretary’s Report: Davidson presented October 24, 2024, meeting minutes. A motion to 

approve them as presented in the board packet made by Alger and seconded by Creath. All 
voted in favor and the motion passed.  

 
III. Treasurer’s Report: Russo presented the October 2024 and November 2024 financials.  Johnson 

also reviewed year end projections which estimate a $460,000 profit for the year. A motion to 
approve the financial statements as presented was made by Davidson and seconded by Alger. 
All voted in favor and the motion passed.  
 

Johnson presented a proposal to open a $1.2 million CD as documented in the board packet.  
The board had reviewed this proposal and approved unanimously electronically but formally 
ratified this action on a motion made by Fitzpatrick and seconded by Alger. All voted in favor 
and the motion passed. 

 
IV. New Business: 

a) Ratification of Rail Study Investment – Johnson reviewed the rail demand study 
proposal as presented in the board packet.  The work will be performed by Three Rivers 
Development in partnership with Southern Tier Economic Growth.  The IDA has been 
asked for a $9,600.00 investment which represents a third of the cost.  A motion for 



approval was made by Alger and seconded by Fitzpatrick. All voted in favor and the 
motion passed.  

b) Nomination of Officers- 2025 nominations were discussed, and no changes were made 
to those presented. Motion was made by Creath and seconded by Caulfield. All voted in 
favor and the motion passed.  

 
V.        Old Business: 

a) McFarland Johnson FEMA Contract – Johnson reviewed the proposal for project scoping 
to rehabilitate the rail bridge along B&H Railroad in the Town of Urbana, NY.   The 
proposal will not exceed $10,000 and has been secured as an emergency procurement. 
A motion to ratify the Executive Director’s action to enter into a contract with 
McFarland Johnson was made by Davidson and seconded by Alger. All voted in favor 
and the motion passed. 

b) CRISI Award Authorization- Johnson discussed the acceptance of this award as 
presented in the board packet. A motion to accept the CRISI Award of $15,982,500.00 
was made by Alger and seconded by Creath. All voted in favor and the motion passed.  

c) Clean Tech Strategy- Johnson reviewed the Clean Tech Strategy conference that was 
held on December 4, 2024.  

 
 

 
 

VI. Adjournment: Alger made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 12:53 pm, which was seconded 
by Fitzpatrick. All voted in favor and the motion passed. 

 
 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Mike Davidson 
Secretary 



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                

                                                                                
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Audit Plan Presentation 

Kristie M. Beach, CPAs, PLLC 

585.721.5663  |  kmbeachcpa.com 

January 23, 2025 



 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Scope of Services & Engagement Team …………………………………………………………………………………………………………1 

Management’s Responsibilities ………………………………………………………………………………..…………………………………..2 

Engagement Objectives …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………3 

Audit Approach – Planned Scope …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………4‐5 

Overall Audit Timeline …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..6 

Updated or New Accounting and Reporting Standards…………………………………………………………………………………..7 



1 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Kristie M. Beach, CPA, PLLC will perform the services below for the year ended December 31, 2024: 

Audit Services 

 Perform the annual audits of the financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing 

Standards and Government Auditing Standards for:  

o Steuben County Industrial Development Agency 

o Steuben County Economic Development Corporation 

Management Letter (AU‐C 265 Letter) 

Preparation of management letter containing comments and recommendations with respect to accounting 

and administrative controls and efficiencies along with internal controls.   

Meetings  

Meet with the Board of Directors and Finance/Audit Committee to present reports, as requested. 

ENGAGEMENT TEAM MEMBERS  

Kristie Beach, CPA 
Partner             
kmbeach@kmbeachcpa.com                
585.721.5663 
 

 

 



2 
 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

Management  is  responsible  for  preparing, with  the  oversight  of  the  Board  of Directors  and  Finance/Audit 
Committee,  the  financial  statements  and  disclosures  in  conformity  with  accounting  principles  generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).  Management’s responsibilities also include the following:  

 Establish and maintain effective internal control over financial reporting and proper accounting records. 

 Identify and ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations. 

 Safeguard the Organization’s assets. 

 Select appropriate accounting principles. 

 Use reasonable judgments and accounting estimates. 

 Make all financial records and related information available to Kristie M. Beach, CPAs. 

 If applicable, record material audit adjustments and affirm to Kristie M. Beach, CPAs that the impact of 
any uncorrected misstatements is immaterial to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 Provide Kristie M. Beach, CPAs with a letter confirming representations made during the audit. 

 
Relating to third party transactions and other non‐attest services, management needs to assume responsibility 
for: 

 Overseeing  the  financial  statements,  by  designating  an  individual,  preferably  within  senior 
management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, and/or experience. The member should assess 
and be satisfied that such individual understands the services to be performed sufficiently to oversee 
them. However, the  individual  is not required to possess the expertise to perform or reperform the 
services.  

 Evaluating the adequacy and results of the services performed.  

 Accepting responsibility for the results of the services and providing an acknowledgement in writing in 
regard to their responsibilities.  Acknowledgement to include the following:  

- Objectives of the engagement  

- Services to be performed  

- Client's acceptance of its responsibilities  

- Firm’s responsibilities  

- Any limitations of the engagement



3 
 

 

ENGAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 

Our objectives with respect to the audit of the Organizations’ financial statements are summarized below: 

 Plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatements, whether caused by error or fraud. An audit does not provide absolute 
assurance relative to or any guarantee of the accuracy of the financial statements and is subject to the 
inherent risk that errors or fraud, if they exist, may not be detected. 

 Obtain a sufficient understanding of the Organizations’ internal control to plan the audit of the financial 
statements.  However,  such  understanding  is  required  for  the  purpose  of  determining  our  audit 
procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.  

 Discuss  any  significant  issues  discussed with management  in  connection with  our  appointment  or 
retention. 

 Communicate our responsibilities in relation to the audit and establish an understanding of the terms of 
the engagement, including providing you with engagement letters. 

 Provide an overview of the overall audit strategy, timing of the audit and significant risks identified. 

 Inquire of the Board of Directors and Finance/Audit Committee about risks of material misstatement, 
including fraud risks, and whether they are aware of other matters that may be relevant to the audit 
such  as  violations  or  possible  violations  of  laws  or  regulations  and  complaints  or  concerns  raised 
regarding accounting or auditing matters. 

 Communicate with management and the Board of Directors and Finance/Audit Committee regarding 
significant  deficiencies  and  material  weaknesses  identified  during  our  audit  and  other  timely 
observations that are significant and relevant to the financial reporting process. 

 Work with management toward timely issuance of financial statements.  

 Maintain our independence with respect to the Organizations. 



4 
 

AUDIT APPROACH – PLANNED SCOPE 

Overall, our audit strategy is to focus on higher risk areas of material misstatement (whether due to error or 
fraud) and other areas of concern for management and the Board of Directors and Finance/Audit Committee.  
 
Our audit strategy includes consideration of: 

 Prior year audit results along with interim results, including discussions with management regarding the 
Organizations operations, business activities, and risks. 

 Inherent risk within the Organizations (i.e., the susceptibility of the financial statements to material error 
or fraud) before recognizing the effectiveness of the control systems. 

 A  continual  assessment  of  materiality  thresholds  based  upon  qualitative  and  quantitative  factors 
affecting the Organizations. 

 Changes in staffing levels, particularly those involved in the financial activities of the Organizations.   

 Recent developments within the industry, regulatory environment, and general economic conditions.   

 Recently issued and effective accounting and financial reporting guidance. 

 The Organizations significant and critical accounting policies and procedures, including those requiring 
significant management judgments and estimates and those related to significant unusual transactions, 
including identification of related parties. 

 The  control  environment,  risk management  and monitoring  processes,  and  the  possibility  that  the 
control systems and procedures may fail to prevent or detect a material error or fraud. We will place 
reliance on internal controls, where applicable, in determining the degree of detailed substantive testing 
required. 

 Information  about  systems  and  the  computer  environment  in which  financial  records  and  related 
systems operate. 

 
Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America require us to identify significant risks in 
the planning stage of our audit.  Based upon our initial assessment the preliminary primary areas of focus in our 
overall audit strategy include:    
 

 Management override of controls (always considered) 

 Improper revenue recognition due to fraud (always considered) 

 Internal Control over Financial Reporting (always considered) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5 
 

AUDIT APPROACH – PLANNED SCOPE 

Based  upon  our  initial  assessment,  our  audit will  entail  a  combination  of  testing  controls  for  reliance  and 

substantive testing.   The preliminary primary areas of focus in our overall audit strategy include:    

 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 Investments – Certificates of Deposit 

 Accounts Receivables and Allowance (if any) 

 Revenue Recognition 

- Grants income 
- Business development support 
- Other revenues 

 Capital Assets 

- Property and equipment 

 Other Assets and Liabilities 

- Accounts payable 
- Net pension liability 

 Net Position/Net Assets 

 Supplemental Schedule of Straight Lease Projects (Agency) 

 Compliance with Public Authorities Law 

We will communicate to management, the Board of Directors and Finance/Audit Committee, in a timely manner, 

any significant changes to the planned audit strategy or the significant risks initially identified that may occur 

during the audit to the results of audit procedures or in response to external factors. 

 



6 
 

OVERALL AUDIT TIMELINE 

The following represents our anticipated schedule with regard to our audit of the annual financial statements 

of the Organizations: 

  Jan  Feb  Mar 

Planning meeting with management and Finance/Audit Committee (1/23/2025)       

Develop Audit Strategy, and Determine Nature and Scope of Testing       

Risk Assessment, Internal Control Discussions & Interim Fieldwork        

Fieldwork        

Agency Project Information Testing       

Financial Statement Preparation & Wrap        

Meeting with management, Finance/Audit Committee and Board – Post Audit       

Release Final Financial Statements & Internal Control Letter (3/31/2025)       

Periodic Meetings and Discussions With Management       



7 
 

UPDATED OR NEW ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS 

GASB Statement No. 101 
Compensated Absences  

The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs 
of  financial  statement  users  by  updating  the  recognition  and 
measurement  guidance  for  compensated  absences.  That  objective  is 
achieved by aligning the recognition and measurement guidance under a 
unified model and by amending certain previously required disclosures.   

*** Effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2023.*** 

GASB Statement No. 102 
Certain Risk Disclosures  

The  objective  of  this  Statement  is  to  provide  users  of  government 
financial statements with essential  information about risks related to a 
government’s  vulnerabilities  due  to  certain  concentrations  or 
constraints.     

*** Effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2024.*** 

GASB Statement No. 103 
Financial Reporting Model   
Improvements 

The objective of  this  Statement  is  to  improve  key  components of  the 
financial  reporting  model  to  enhance  its  effectiveness  in  providing 
information  that  is  essential  for  decision  making  and  assessing  a 
government’s accountability.  

*** Effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2024.*** 

GASB Statement No. 104 
Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets 

The  objective  of  this  Statement  is  to  provide  users  of  government 
financial  statements with  essential  information  about  certain  types of 
capital assets.  

*** Effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2025.*** 











Steuben County IDA 

2025 Committee Appointments  
 

 

Governance  

Mark Alger, Chair  

Michelle Caulfield 

Sarah Creath  

 

Finance/Audit  

Tony Russo, Chair 

Kelly Fitzpatrick  

Mike Davidson  

 

Personnel/Nominating   

Mark Alger 

Dean Strobel 

Tony Russo   

 

 



Steuben County Industrial Development Agency 
 

Tentative Meeting Schedule 
 

2025 
 

January 23 
 

February 27 
 

March 27 
 

April 24 
 

May 22 
 

June 26 
 

July 24 
 

August 28 
 

September 25 
 

October 23 
 

November – TBD 
 

December - TBD 
 









Project Summary Sheet 
Clear View Solar LLC 
January 2025 
 
 
Project Description 
Clear View Solar is developing a 20 MW solar facility on 120 acres of agricultural land in the Town of Cohocton. The 
project’s parent company is VC Renewables, a US-based energy developer with 24 solar projects completed and more 
than 3 GW of generation under development. Due to its size, this is considered a utility-scale solar project with power 
being pushed into the grid and sold on the open market. 
 
The company will be applying for sales and property tax exemptions. 
 
 
Total Project Investment   $38,990,000 
 
Jobs Retained     0 
Job Created  0  

Short-term job potential: construction jobs  
Long-term job potential: various professions will be hired on a part-time, 
contract basis as needed during the life of the project, such as electrical 
workers, landscapers, and site security 

 
Benefit to Cost Ratio 1:1 (assumes a full assessment value based on the state’s appraisal model) 
Estimated PILOT Savings $4,604,396 (assumes the calculations for the state assessment model will 

remain as is over the 20-year PILOT term)  
Estimated Mortgage Tax Savings $0 
Estimated Sales Tax Savings  $1,747,200 
Total Savings    $6,351,596 
Comments The state’s assessment model results are good for one year. NYS Tax and 

Finance updates the model’s calculations each year, so the assessment could 
increase or decrease in future years, which would impact the PILOT savings 
noted above.  

 
Estimated Project Start Date  March 2025 
Estimated Project Completion Date The project will be constructed within nine months, however it will not start 

generating electricity until Q4 2026 or Q1 2027 because a transformer needs to 
be purchased and installed by NYSEG. 

 
 
Evaluative Criteria for Energy Projects 
 
1. Private Sector Investment – The project will result in an estimated $2.7 million local, private sector investment, 

create construction jobs, and induce local spending for lodging, restaurants, and gas stations during the construction 
period. 

2. Advances State Renewable Energy Production Goals – This project will assist in meeting the state’s climate action 
goals to generate 70% of electricity from renewable sources by 2030 and by reducing greenhouse gases 85% by 
2050. The CBA estimates the project will power 8,118 homes per year and reduce CO2 emissions by 27,068 metric 
tons. 







































Clear View Solar
Steuben County IDA PILOT Assessment - DRAFT
Solar Array - Tax Map 005.00-01-014.000

Distribution Rate 
Cohocton Tax Rate/$1,000 $7.53 19.70%
County Tax Rate/$1,000 $10.63 27.81%
W-C School District Tax Rate/$1,000 $20.07 52.50%
Total Tax Rate/$1000 $38.23

Per MW PILOT Rate $4,000.00 plus 2% annually 
Rated Megawatts 6.84
Total PILOT payment over 20 years $695,051

Abatement Year
Taxes on 42.2 
acres of land

Total PILOT 
Payment

Town Payment w/ 
PILOT and 42.2 acres

County Payment w/ 
PILOT and 42.2 acres

School Payment w/ 
PILOT and 42.2 

acres

Total Taxes w/ PILOT 
and 42.2 acres

Year 1 $1,246 $27,360 $5,634 $7,954 $15,018 $28,606
Year 2 $1,271 $27,907 $5,747 $8,113 $15,318 $29,178
Year 3 $1,296 $28,465 $5,862 $8,275 $15,624 $29,762
Year 4 $1,322 $29,035 $5,979 $8,441 $15,937 $30,357
Year 5 $1,349 $29,615 $6,099 $8,610 $16,256 $30,964
Year 6 $1,376 $30,208 $6,221 $8,782 $16,581 $31,583
Year 7 $1,403 $30,812 $6,345 $8,958 $16,912 $32,215
Year 8 $1,431 $31,428 $6,472 $9,137 $17,251 $32,859
Year 9 $1,460 $32,057 $6,602 $9,319 $17,596 $33,517
Year 10 $1,489 $32,698 $6,734 $9,506 $17,947 $34,187
Year 11 $1,519 $33,352 $6,868 $9,696 $18,306 $34,871
Year 12 $1,549 $34,019 $7,006 $9,890 $18,672 $35,568
Year 13 $1,580 $34,699 $7,146 $10,088 $19,046 $36,279
Year 14 $1,612 $35,393 $7,289 $10,289 $19,427 $37,005
Year 15 $1,644 $36,101 $7,434 $10,495 $19,815 $37,745
Year 16 $1,677 $36,823 $7,583 $10,705 $20,212 $38,500
Year 17 $1,711 $37,559 $7,735 $10,919 $20,616 $39,270
Year 18 $1,745 $38,311 $7,890 $11,138 $21,028 $40,055
Year 19 $1,780 $39,077 $8,047 $11,360 $21,449 $40,856
Year 20 $1,815 $39,858 $8,208 $11,587 $21,878 $41,674

$30,275 $664,776 $136,901 $193,262 $364,888 $695,051



Clear View Solar
Steuben County IDA PILOT Assessment - DRAFT
Solar Array - Tax Map 005.00-01-021.000

Distribution Rate 
Cohocton Tax Rate/$1,000 $7.53 19.70%
County Tax Rate/$1,000 $10.63 27.81%
W-C School District Tax Rate/$1,000 $20.07 52.50%
Total Tax Rate/$1000 $38.23

Per MW PILOT Rate $4,000.00 plus 2% annually 
Rated Megawatts 7.14
Total PILOT payment over 20 years $734,249

Abatement Year
Taxes on 39.75 
acres of land

Total PILOT 
Payment

Town Payment w/ 
PILOT and 39.75 

acres

County Payment w/ 
PILOT and 39.75 

acres

School Payment w/ 
PILOT and 39.75 

acres

Total Taxes w/ PILOT 
and 39.75 acres

Year 1 $1,659 $28,560 $5,952 $8,403 $15,865 $30,219
Year 2 $1,692 $29,131 $6,071 $8,571 $16,182 $30,824
Year 3 $1,726 $29,714 $6,193 $8,742 $16,505 $31,440
Year 4 $1,761 $30,308 $6,316 $8,917 $16,836 $32,069
Year 5 $1,796 $30,914 $6,443 $9,095 $17,172 $32,710
Year 6 $1,832 $31,533 $6,572 $9,277 $17,516 $33,365
Year 7 $1,869 $32,163 $6,703 $9,463 $17,866 $34,032
Year 8 $1,906 $32,806 $6,837 $9,652 $18,223 $34,712
Year 9 $1,944 $33,463 $6,974 $9,845 $18,588 $35,407
Year 10 $1,983 $34,132 $7,113 $10,042 $18,960 $36,115
Year 11 $2,023 $34,814 $7,256 $10,243 $19,339 $36,837
Year 12 $2,063 $35,511 $7,401 $10,448 $19,726 $37,574
Year 13 $2,104 $36,221 $7,549 $10,657 $20,120 $38,325
Year 14 $2,146 $36,945 $7,700 $10,870 $20,522 $39,092
Year 15 $2,189 $37,684 $7,854 $11,087 $20,933 $39,874
Year 16 $2,233 $38,438 $8,011 $11,309 $21,352 $40,671
Year 17 $2,278 $39,207 $8,171 $11,535 $21,779 $41,485
Year 18 $2,323 $39,991 $8,334 $11,766 $22,214 $42,314
Year 19 $2,370 $40,791 $8,501 $12,001 $22,658 $43,161
Year 20 $2,417 $41,607 $8,671 $12,241 $23,112 $44,024

$40,316 $693,933 $144,622 $204,161 $385,466 $734,249



Clear View Solar
Steuben County IDA PILOT Assessment - DRAFT
Solar Array - Tax Map 005.00-01-017.100

Distribution Rate 
Cohocton Tax Rate/$1,000 $7.53 19.70%
County Tax Rate/$1,000 $10.63 27.81%
W-C School District Tax Rate/$1,000 $20.07 52.50%
Total Tax Rate/$1000 $38.23

Per MW PILOT Rate $4,000.00 plus 2% annually 
Rated Megawatts 3.90
Total PILOT payment over 20 years $393,455

Abatement Year
Taxes on 18.9 
acres of land

Total PILOT 
Payment

Town Payment w/ 
PILOT and 18.9 acres

County Payment w/ 
PILOT and 18.9 acres

School Payment w/ 
PILOT and 18.9 

acres

Total Taxes w/ PILOT 
and 18.9 acres

Year 1 $593 $15,600 $3,190 $4,503 $8,501 $16,193
Year 2 $605 $15,912 $3,253 $4,593 $8,671 $16,517
Year 3 $617 $16,230 $3,318 $4,685 $8,845 $16,848
Year 4 $630 $16,555 $3,385 $4,778 $9,022 $17,184
Year 5 $642 $16,886 $3,452 $4,874 $9,202 $17,528
Year 6 $655 $17,224 $3,521 $4,971 $9,386 $17,879
Year 7 $668 $17,568 $3,592 $5,071 $9,574 $18,236
Year 8 $682 $17,919 $3,664 $5,172 $9,765 $18,601
Year 9 $695 $18,278 $3,737 $5,276 $9,960 $18,973
Year 10 $709 $18,643 $3,812 $5,381 $10,160 $19,352
Year 11 $723 $19,016 $3,888 $5,489 $10,363 $19,740
Year 12 $738 $19,397 $3,966 $5,598 $10,570 $20,134
Year 13 $752 $19,785 $4,045 $5,710 $10,782 $20,537
Year 14 $767 $20,180 $4,126 $5,825 $10,997 $20,948
Year 15 $783 $20,584 $4,209 $5,941 $11,217 $21,367
Year 16 $799 $20,996 $4,293 $6,060 $11,441 $21,794
Year 17 $814 $21,415 $4,379 $6,181 $11,670 $22,230
Year 18 $831 $21,844 $4,466 $6,305 $11,904 $22,675
Year 19 $847 $22,281 $4,555 $6,431 $12,142 $23,128
Year 20 $864 $22,726 $4,647 $6,559 $12,385 $23,591

$14,416 $379,039 $77,497 $109,402 $206,556 $393,455



Clear View Solar
Steuben County IDA PILOT Assessment - DRAFT
Solar Array - Tax Map 005.00-01-012.000

Distribution Rate 
Cohocton Tax Rate/$1,000 $7.53 19.92%
County Tax Rate/$1,000 $10.63 28.12%
Naples School District Tax Rate/$1,000 $19.64 51.96%
Total Tax Rate/$1000 $37.80

Per MW PILOT Rate $4,000.00 plus 2% annually 
Rated Megawatts 2.12
Total PILOT payment over 20 years $218,988

Abatement Year
Taxes on 19.36 
acres of land

Total PILOT 
Payment

Town Payment w/ 
PILOT and 19.36 

acres

County Payment w/ 
PILOT and 19.36 

acres

School Payment w/ 
PILOT and 19.36 

acres

Total Taxes w/ PILOT 
and 19.36 acres

Year 1 $533 $8,480 $1,795 $2,535 $4,683 $9,013
Year 2 $543 $8,650 $1,831 $2,585 $4,777 $9,193
Year 3 $554 $8,823 $1,868 $2,637 $4,872 $9,377
Year 4 $565 $8,999 $1,905 $2,690 $4,969 $9,564
Year 5 $577 $9,179 $1,943 $2,743 $5,069 $9,756
Year 6 $588 $9,363 $1,982 $2,798 $5,170 $9,951
Year 7 $600 $9,550 $2,022 $2,854 $5,274 $10,150
Year 8 $612 $9,741 $2,062 $2,911 $5,379 $10,353
Year 9 $624 $9,936 $2,104 $2,970 $5,487 $10,560
Year 10 $637 $10,134 $2,146 $3,029 $5,596 $10,771
Year 11 $650 $10,337 $2,189 $3,090 $5,708 $10,987
Year 12 $662 $10,544 $2,232 $3,151 $5,823 $11,206
Year 13 $676 $10,755 $2,277 $3,214 $5,939 $11,430
Year 14 $689 $10,970 $2,323 $3,279 $6,058 $11,659
Year 15 $703 $11,189 $2,369 $3,344 $6,179 $11,892
Year 16 $717 $11,413 $2,416 $3,411 $6,303 $12,130
Year 17 $731 $11,641 $2,465 $3,479 $6,429 $12,373
Year 18 $746 $11,874 $2,514 $3,549 $6,557 $12,620
Year 19 $761 $12,112 $2,564 $3,620 $6,688 $12,873
Year 20 $776 $12,354 $2,616 $3,692 $6,822 $13,130

$12,946 $206,042 $43,624 $61,583 $113,781 $218,988



Clear View Solar
Combined PILOT Payments

Abatement Year Cohocton Revenue County Revenue
Wayland 

Cohocton School 
District Revenue

Naples School 
District Revenue

Total PILOT 
Revenue

Year 1 $16,572 $23,394 $39,383 $4,683 $84,031
Year 2 $16,903 $23,862 $40,171 $4,777 $85,712
Year 3 $17,241 $24,339 $40,974 $4,872 $87,426
Year 4 $17,586 $24,826 $41,794 $4,969 $89,175
Year 5 $17,938 $25,322 $42,630 $5,069 $90,958
Year 6 $18,296 $25,829 $43,482 $5,170 $92,777
Year 7 $18,662 $26,345 $44,352 $5,274 $94,633
Year 8 $19,035 $26,872 $45,239 $5,379 $96,526
Year 9 $19,416 $27,410 $46,144 $5,487 $98,456
Year 10 $19,804 $27,958 $47,067 $5,596 $100,425
Year 11 $20,201 $28,517 $48,008 $5,708 $102,434
Year 12 $20,605 $29,087 $48,968 $5,823 $104,483
Year 13 $21,017 $29,669 $49,948 $5,939 $106,572
Year 14 $21,437 $30,262 $50,946 $6,058 $108,704
Year 15 $21,866 $30,868 $51,965 $6,179 $110,878
Year 16 $22,303 $31,485 $53,005 $6,303 $113,095
Year 17 $22,749 $32,115 $54,065 $6,429 $115,357
Year 18 $23,204 $32,757 $55,146 $6,557 $117,664
Year 19 $23,668 $33,412 $56,249 $6,688 $120,018
Year 20 $24,142 $34,080 $57,374 $6,822 $122,418

Total $402,644 $568,407 $956,910 $113,781 $2,041,743



Steuben County Industrial Development Agency
MRB Cost Benefit Calculator Cost-Benefit Analysis Tool powered by MRB Group

Date
Project Title
Project Location

Summary of Economic Impacts over the Life of the PILOT
Project Total Investment
$38,990,000 Temporary (Construction)

Direct Indirect Total
Jobs 16 4 20

Earnings $1,047,913 $239,462 $1,287,375
Local Spend $2,729,300 $760,542 $3,489,842

Ongoing (Operations)
Aggregate over life of the PILOT

Direct Indirect Total
Jobs 0 0 0

Earnings $0 $0 $0

             Figure 1

          Net Benefits chart will always display construction through year 10, irrespective of the length of the PILOT.

Figure 2

© Copyright 2023 MRB Engineering, Architecture and Surveying, D.P.C. Ongoing earnings are all earnings over the life of the PILOT.

January 15, 2025
Clear View Solar
Cohocton, NY

Figure 3

Economic Impacts

0 5 10 15 20 25

Ongoing

Temporary

Total Jobs

Direct Indirect
$0 $200,000 $400,000 $600,000 $800,000 $1,000,000 $1,200,000 $1,400,000

Ongoing

Temporary

Total Earnings

Direct Indirect

-$2,000,000

-$1,500,000

-$1,000,000

-$500,000

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

Net Benefits

Benefits Costs Net Benefits



Cost-Benefit Analysis Tool powered by MRB Group

Estimated Costs of Exemptions
Nominal Value Discounted Value*

Property Tax Exemption $4,604,396 $3,715,722
Sales Tax Exemption $1,747,200 $1,747,200

Local Sales Tax Exemption $873,600 $873,600
State Sales Tax Exemption $873,600 $873,600

Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption $0 $0
Local Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption $0 $0
State Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption $0 $0

Total Costs $6,351,596 $5,462,922

State and Local Benefits

Nominal Value Discounted Value*
Local Benefits
To Private Individuals

Temporary Payroll
Ongoing Payroll
Other Payments to Private Individuals

To the Public
Increase in Property Tax Revenue
Temporary Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue
Ongoing Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue
Other Local Municipal Revenue

State Benefits
To the Public

Temporary Income Tax Revenue
Ongoing Income Tax Revenue
Temporary Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue
Ongoing Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue

Total Benefits to State & Region

Benefit to Cost Ratio 
Ratio

Local 1:1
State :1

Grand Total 1:1
*Discounted at 2% 

             Does the IDA believe that the project can be accomplished in a timely fashion? Yes

© Copyright 2023 MRB Engineering, Architecture and Surveying, D.P.C.

$0 $0

$728,921 $588,235

$2,681,722 $2,165,874
$1,943,790 $1,568,627

$9,012 $9,012
$0 $0

It is estimated that the project will power 8,118 homes per year and reduce CO2 by 27,068 metric tons. These findings are not part of the CBA results. The CBA 
assumes a state assessment of over $7 million, which leads to property taxes of $273,533 in the first year. Inputs used to reach the assessment were estimated 
based on information available. The value is good for one year, after which time the state assessment model is reevaluated by NYS Tax & Finance and subject 
to changes that could create a lower assessment. The CBA also assumes local spend of $2.7 million based on information in the IDA application.

Fiscal Impacts

Additional Comments from IDA

Benefit*

$3,969,097 $3,453,249
$1,287,375 $1,287,375
$1,287,375

$0
$1,287,375

$0

$57,932
$0

$9,012

$66,943 $66,943
$66,943 $66,943
$57,932

$3,520,193$4,036,041

$3,520,193 $5,462,922

$0
$9,012

$0

Cost*
$3,453,249

$66,943
$4,589,322
$873,600

$0





















































 

Error! Unknown document property name. 

INITIAL RESOLUTION 

(Clear View Solar LLC Project) 

 

A regular meeting of the Steuben County Industrial Development Agency was convened 

on Thursday, January 23, 2025. 

 

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit: 

 

Resolution No.  01/2025 - _____ 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE STEUBEN COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 

DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (THE "AGENCY") (i) ACCEPTING THE 

APPLICATION OF CLEAR VIEW SOLAR LLC WITH RESPECT TO A 

CERTAIN PROJECT (AS MORE FULLY DESCRIBED BELOW), (ii) 

AUTHORIZING THE SCHEDULING OF A PUBLIC HEARING WITH 

RESPECT TO THE PROJECT, (iii) DESCRIBING THE FORMS OF 

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE BEING CONTEMPLATED WITH RESPECT TO 

THE PROJECT, AND (iv) AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION OF 

CERTAIN AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE PROJECT.  

 

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of 

New York, as amended, and Chapter 178 of the Laws of 1972 of the State of New York, as 

amended (hereinafter collectively called the "Act"), the STEUBEN COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 

DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (hereinafter called "Agency") was created with the authority and 

power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring, 

constructing and equipping industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized by 

the Act; and 

  

WHEREAS, CLEAR VIEW SOLAR LLC, for itself or on behalf of an entity formed or 

to be formed by it or on its behalf (collectively, the "Company"), has submitted an application 

(the "Application"), a copy of which is on file with the Agency, requesting the Agency's 

assistance with respect to a certain project (the "Project"), consisting of: (i) the acquisition by the 

Agency of a leasehold interest in approximately 120 acres of real property located at Eelpot 

Road, Snyder Road, 4463 Naples Street (Rear), Naples Street and Wayland Street, each in the 

Town of Cohocton, New York and all other lands where by license or easement or other 

agreement the Company or its designees are making improvements that benefit the Project (the 

"Land", being more particularly identified as all or a portion of tax parcel numbers 006.00-01-

001.1002, 005.00-01-012.000, 005.00-01-014.000, 005.00-01-017.000 and 005.00-01-021.000, 

as may be subdivided); (ii) the planning, design, construction and operation of a 20MWac PV 

solar electrical generation system, including panel foundations, inverters, transformers, 

interconnect wiring, utility connections, sitework, landscaping, fencing, security and related 

improvements (collectively, the "Improvements"); and (iii) the acquisition of and installation in 

and around the Land and Improvements by the Company of machinery, equipment, fixtures and 

other items of tangible personal property (the "Equipment"; and, together with the Land and the 

Improvements, the "Facility"); and 

 



 

Page 2 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law the Agency desires 

to adopt a resolution describing the Project and the Financial Assistance (as defined below) that 

the Agency is contemplating with respect to the Project; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is contemplated that the Agency will hold a public hearing and (i) 

negotiate and enter into a project agreement, pursuant to which the Agency will appoint the 

Company as its agent for the purpose of undertaking the Project (the "Project Agreement"), (ii) 

negotiate and enter into a lease agreement (the "Lease Agreement"), a leaseback agreement (the 

"Leaseback Agreement"), and a payment-in-lieu-of-tax agreement (the "Tax Agreement"), (iii) 

take a leasehold interest (or other interest) in the Land and the Improvements and personal 

property constituting the Facility (once the Lease Agreement, the Leaseback Agreement and the 

Tax Agreement have been negotiated), and (iv) provide Financial Assistance to the Company in 

the form of (a) a sales and use tax exemption for purchases and rentals related to the acquisition, 

construction, and equipping of the Facility and (b) a partial real property tax abatement 

structured within the Tax Agreement (collectively, the "Financial Assistance"). 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE STEUBEN 

COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The Company has presented an Application in a form acceptable to the 

Agency.  Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in the Company’s 

Application, the Agency hereby finds and determines that: 

 

 (A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and 

convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all 

powers granted to it under the Act; and 

 

 (B) The Agency has the authority to take the actions contemplated herein under the 

Act; and 

 

 (C) The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to develop the 

Project, thereby increasing employment opportunities in Steuben County, New York, and 

otherwise furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in the Act; and 

 

 (D) The Project will not result in the removal of a civic, commercial, industrial, or 

manufacturing plant of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project from one 

area of the State of New York (the "State") to another area of the State or result in the 

abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Company or any other proposed occupant 

of the Project located within the State; and the Agency hereby finds that, based on the 

Company’s application, to the extent occupants are relocating from one plant or facility to 

another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage the Project occupants from removing 

such other plant or facility to a location outside the State and/or is reasonably necessary to 

preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in their respective industries; and 

 

Section 2. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Executive Director of the Agency 

are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to (A) hold a public hearing in compliance with 



 

Page 3 
 

the Act, and (B) negotiate (1) the Project Agreement, pursuant to which the Agency appoints the 

Company as its agent to undertake the Project, (2) the Lease Agreement, pursuant to which the 

Company leases the Project to the Agency, (3) the related Leaseback Agreement, pursuant to 

which the Agency leases its interest in the Project back to the Company, (4) the Tax Agreement, 

pursuant to which the Company agrees to make certain payments in lieu of real property taxes 

for the benefit of affected tax jurisdictions, and (5) related documents; provided (i) the rental 

payments under the Leaseback Agreement include payments of all costs incurred by the Agency 

arising out of or related to the Project and indemnification of the Agency by the Company for 

actions taken by the Company and/or claims arising out of or related to the Project; and (ii) the 

terms of the Tax Agreement are consistent with the Agency's Uniform Tax Exemption Policy or 

the procedures for deviation therefrom have been complied with. 

 

Section 3. The Agency is hereby authorized to conduct a public hearing in 

compliance with the Act. 

 

Section 4. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized 

and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required 

and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees, 

charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the 

opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of 

the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants 

and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency. 

 

Section 5. In the event that (a) the Company does not proceed to final Agency 

approval within six (6) months of the date hereof and/or (b) close with the Agency on the 

proposed Financial Assistance within twelve (12) months of the date hereof, the Agency reserves 

the right to rescind and cancel this resolution and all approvals made hereunder or under any 

other Agency resolution or action. 

 

Section 6. These Resolutions shall take effect immediately. 

 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to vote on roll call, 

which resulted as follows: 

 

Yea  Nay  Abstain Absent 

 

Mark R. Alger  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Sarah Creath   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Mike Davidson [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Michelle Caulfield [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Kelly Fitzpatrick [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Anthony Russo [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Dean Strobel  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

 

The Resolutions were thereupon duly adopted. 



 

Page 4 
 

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATION 

(Clear View Solar LLC Project) 

 

 

 

STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 

COUNTY OF STEUBEN  ) ss.: 

 

I, the undersigned, Secretary of the Steuben County Industrial Development Agency, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY: 

 

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of the Steuben 

County Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency"), including the resolution contained 

therein, held on January 23, 2025, with the original thereof on file in the office of the Agency, 

and that the same is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such 

resolution set forth therein and of the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the 

subject matters therein referred to. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting, 

that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public 

Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public 

notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Article 7. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present 

throughout said meeting. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force 

and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said 

Agency this ___ day of _______________, 2025. 

 

 

 

              

        Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

  



















































































































































































































































 

Error! Unknown document property name. 

INITIAL RESOLUTION 

(Prattsburgh Wind, LLC Project) 

 

A regular meeting of the Steuben County Industrial Development Agency was convened 

on Thursday, January 23, 2025. 

 

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit: 

 

Resolution No.  01/2025 - _____ 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE STEUBEN COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 

DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (THE "AGENCY") (i) ACCEPTING THE 

APPLICATION OF PRATTSBURGH WIND, LLC WITH RESPECT TO A 

CERTAIN PROJECT (AS MORE FULLY DESCRIBED BELOW), (ii) 

AUTHORIZING THE SCHEDULING OF A PUBLIC HEARING WITH 

RESPECT TO THE PROJECT, (iii) DESCRIBING THE FORMS OF 

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE BEING CONTEMPLATED WITH RESPECT TO 

THE PROJECT, AND (iv) AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION OF 

CERTAIN AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE PROJECT.  

 

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of 

New York, as amended, and Chapter 178 of the Laws of 1972 of the State of New York, as 

amended (hereinafter collectively called the "Act"), the STEUBEN COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 

DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (hereinafter called "Agency") was created with the authority and 

power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring, 

constructing and equipping industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized by 

the Act; and 

  

WHEREAS, PRATTSBURGH WIND, LLC, for itself or on behalf of an entity to be 

formed by it or on its behalf (collectively, the "Company"), has submitted an application (the 

"Application"), a copy of which is on file with the Agency, requesting the Agency's assistance 

with respect to a certain project (the "Project"), consisting of: (i) the acquisition by the Agency of 

a leasehold interest in certain real property located in the Towns of Avoca, Cohocton, Howard, 

Prattsburgh and Wheeler, Steuben County, New York and all other lands in the Towns of Avoca, 

Cohocton, Howard, Prattsburgh and Wheeler where, by license or easement or other agreement, 

the Company or its designees are making improvements that benefit the Project (collectively, the 

"Land"); (ii) the planning, design, construction, installation and operation on the Land of up to 

36 wind turbines with an aggregate generating capacity of approximately 147MW together with 

associated electrical interconnect infrastructure (collectively, the "Improvements"); and (iii) the 

acquisition of and installation in and around the Land and Improvements by the Company of 

machinery, equipment, fixtures and other items of tangible personal property (the "Equipment"; 

and, together with the Land and the Improvements, the "Facility"); and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law the Agency desires 

to adopt a resolution describing the Project and the Financial Assistance (as defined below) that 

the Agency is contemplating with respect to the Project; and 



 

Page 2 
 

 

WHEREAS, it is contemplated that the Agency will hold a public hearing and (i) 

negotiate and enter into a project agreement, pursuant to which the Agency will appoint the 

Company as its agent for the purpose of undertaking the Project (the "Project Agreement"), (ii) 

negotiate and enter into a lease agreement (the "Lease Agreement"), a leaseback agreement (the 

"Leaseback Agreement"), and a payment-in-lieu-of-tax agreement (the "Tax Agreement"), (iii) 

take a leasehold interest (or other interest) in the Land and the Improvements and personal 

property constituting the Facility (once the Lease Agreement, the Leaseback Agreement and the 

Tax Agreement have been negotiated), and (iv) provide Financial Assistance to the Company in 

the form of (a) a sales and use tax exemption for purchases and rentals related to the acquisition, 

construction, and equipping of the Facility, (b) a partial real property tax abatement structured 

within the Tax Agreement, and (c) an exemption from mortgage recording taxes imposed on the 

financing related to the Project (collectively, the "Financial Assistance"). 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE STEUBEN 

COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The Company has presented an Application in a form acceptable to the 

Agency.  Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in the Company’s 

Application, the Agency hereby finds and determines that: 

 

 (A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and 

convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all 

powers granted to it under the Act; and 

 

 (B) The Agency has the authority to take the actions contemplated herein under the 

Act; and 

 

 (C) The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to develop the 

Project, thereby increasing employment opportunities in Steuben County, New York, and 

otherwise furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in the Act; and 

 

 (D) The Project will not result in the removal of a civic, commercial, industrial, or 

manufacturing plant of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project from one 

area of the State of New York (the "State") to another area of the State or result in the 

abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Company or any other proposed occupant 

of the Project located within the State; and the Agency hereby finds that, based on the 

Company’s application, to the extent occupants are relocating from one plant or facility to 

another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage the Project occupants from removing 

such other plant or facility to a location outside the State and/or is reasonably necessary to 

preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in their respective industries; and 

 

Section 2. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Executive Director of the Agency 

are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to (A) hold a public hearing in compliance with 

the Act, and (B) negotiate (1) the Project Agreement, pursuant to which the Agency appoints the 

Company as its agent to undertake the Project, (2) the Lease Agreement, pursuant to which the 



 

Page 3 
 

Company leases the Project to the Agency, (3) the related Leaseback Agreement, pursuant to 

which the Agency leases its interest in the Project back to the Company, (4) the Tax Agreement, 

pursuant to which the Company agrees to make certain payments in lieu of real property taxes 

for the benefit of affected tax jurisdictions, and (5) related documents; provided (i) the rental 

payments under the Leaseback Agreement include payments of all costs incurred by the Agency 

arising out of or related to the Project and indemnification of the Agency by the Company for 

actions taken by the Company and/or claims arising out of or related to the Project; and (ii) the 

terms of the Tax Agreement are consistent with the Agency's Uniform Tax Exemption Policy or 

the procedures for deviation therefrom have been complied with. 

 

Section 3. The Agency is hereby authorized to conduct a public hearing in 

compliance with the Act. 

 

Section 4. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized 

and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required 

and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees, 

charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the 

opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of 

the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants 

and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency. 

 

Section 5. In the event that (a) the Company does not proceed to final Agency 

approval within six (6) months of the date hereof and/or (b) close with the Agency on the 

proposed Financial Assistance within twelve (12) months of the date hereof, the Agency reserves 

the right to rescind and cancel this resolution and all approvals made hereunder or under any 

other Agency resolution or action. 

 

Section 6. These Resolutions shall take effect immediately. 

 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to vote on roll call, 

which resulted as follows: 

 

Yea  Nay  Abstain Absent 

 

Mark R. Alger  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Sarah Creath   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Mike Davidson [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Michelle Caulfield [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Kelly Fitzpatrick [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Anthony Russo [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Dean Strobel  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

 

The Resolutions were thereupon duly adopted. 



 

Page 4 
 

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATION 

(Prattsburgh Wind, LLC Project) 

 

 

 

STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 

COUNTY OF STEUBEN  ) ss.: 

 

I, the undersigned, Secretary of the Steuben County Industrial Development Agency, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY: 

 

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of the Steuben 

County Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency"), including the resolution contained 

therein, held on January 23, 2025, with the original thereof on file in the office of the Agency, 

and that the same is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such 

resolution set forth therein and of the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the 

subject matters therein referred to. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting, 

that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public 

Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public 

notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Article 7. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present 

throughout said meeting. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force 

and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said 

Agency this ___ day of _______________, 2025. 

 

 

 

              

        Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

  





















































 
150 State Street | Suite 301 Albany, NY 12207   1 
518.436.6202 
 

 

TO:  NYSEDC 

FROM:   Ostroff Associates 

DATE:  January 14, 2025 

RE.:  2025 State of the State  

Governor Hochul has released the 2025 State of the State Book, outlining budgetary and policy initiatives 

her administration plans to pursue this year.  

Below, please find items of interest to you. 

 

Promote Opportunity with Electric Readiness for Underdeveloped Properties Fund 

 

New York State is attracting investment in new manufacturing and high-tech development faster 

than existing energy system planning and funding mechanisms can accommodate, and we need more 

power-ready sites—a key factor in where companies decide to locate. Indeed, lack of speedy 

connection to reliable power is often cited as a primary reason for advanced manufacturers taking 

their business, and jobs, towards other states or opportunities. 

 

Locating at a power-ready site can shave years off the timeline between site selection and a plant’s 

opening day. Extending transmission and electrical infrastructure to more sites around the State will 

help unlock equitable economic growth and supercharge our ability to connect New Yorkers with 

the advanced manufacturing jobs of the future. 

 

To help land more business and jobs in New York, Governor Hochul will launch a new program— 

the Promote Opportunity with Electric Readiness for Underdeveloped Properties (POWER UP)— 

to fund the proactive development of electric capacity to create power-ready sites and attract new 

businesses to the state. Governor Hochul is seeding the fund with $300 million, which will allow for 

the proactive development of dozens of sites. 

 

POWER UP will not only alleviate bottlenecks to connect businesses to power but will help defray 

electrical costs for regional consumers, who under our current regulatory structure are often left to 

foot the bill for grid improvements prompted by one particular project within their region. POWER 

UP will defray those costs by interjecting State capital dollars into projects that provide 

overwhelming public and economic benefits. 

 

The Empire State Development Corporation (ESD) will provide economic development expertise 

to ensure the fund helps prepare sites that are strongly positioned to host manufacturing operations 

that will create jobs in New York State. 

 

The Department of Public Service will provide expertise in utility capital planning and will identify 



 
150 State Street | Suite 301 Albany, NY 12207   2 
518.436.6202 
 

opportunities for project sites that bundle clean energy resources together. 

 

Build Clean Energy Zones 

 

To unlock economic growth and lower the cost of our clean energy transition, New York will 

encourage the development of regional concentrations of clean electric generation paired with 

transmission, by expanding its coordinated grid planning process to identify Clean Energy Zones 

(CEZs). 

 

Generation and transmission projects in a CEZ will be proactively coordinated to reduce 

developers’ interconnection risks and costs, thereby lowering costs paid by electric customers. This 

approach will allow for more community engagement, reduce red tape for developers and business, 

and align ongoing economic development and power sector initiatives as we build out the clean 

energy future. 

 

The CEZ process will identify opportunities to integrate clean energy generation and transmission, 

ensuring the efficient and effective use of New York’s natural resources to meet local demands, 

support the state’s reliability needs, and achieve climate goals. CEZ projects will receive priority 

review, with generation and transmission projects proactively coordinated to minimize development 

risks and reduce costs for consumers. Host communities will benefit from the increased tax revenue, 

and state economic development resources will be directed to communities within a CEZ. 

 

Grow the Semiconductor Industry and Build the Semiconductor Supply Chain 

 

New York has emerged as a leader in the semiconductor industry through the Green CHIPS 

program, attracting over $120 billion in private sector investment. Much of that success is owed to 

New York’s Excelsior Jobs Tax Credit Program, which encourages businesses to locate or expand in 

New York by providing Excelsior tax credits after meeting job creation and investment thresholds. 

 

While New York State continues to lead in bringing semiconductor manufacturing home to our 

state, multiple states are vying to attract the related supply-chain companies that are looking to do 

business with those manufacturers. 

 

Governor Hochul is doubling down on what works and is proposing a 10-year extension of 

Excelsior, to allow our foremost job creation tool to continue its track record of success. 

 

To be competitive, this year’s Executive Budget creates a new tier for semiconductor supply chain 

companies within the proven Excelsior Jobs Tax Credit Program. The new Semiconductor Supply 

Chain Tax Credit will offer up to a 7 percent jobs tax credit, and a 3 percent investment tax credit. 

The Excelsior enhancements also include a large-scale semiconductor R&D tax credit for major 

research investments exceeding $100 million in qualified expenditures. 

 

In addition, the Governor's Office of Semiconductor Expansion (GO-SEMI), which was created in 

State Fiscal Year 24, will establish a Strategic Global Engagement team to promote New York State 

abroad and attract international semiconductor and supply chain companies. 

 



 
150 State Street | Suite 301 Albany, NY 12207   3 
518.436.6202 
 

 

Double Down on Shovel-Ready Sites for Modern Manufacturing 

 

While New York State is a leader in business attraction, large scale manufacturing and industrial 

firms can only continue to locate and expand here if sufficient shovel-ready space is available. 

Governor Hochul established the Focused Attraction of Shovel-Ready Tracts New York (FAST 

NY) program to build shovel-ready sites across New York and ensure the state is prepared to 

capitalize on high-value opportunities. Since its launch in 2022, FAST NY has committed over $175 

million to 20 projects, transforming nearly 3,000 acres of previously underutilized land into future 

economic engines of the state. 

 

This year’s Executive Budget proposes a new round of FAST NY that prioritizes semiconductor 

manufacturing and supply chain projects as well as cleantech and green economy projects. This new 

round of funding will include a focus on equipping sites with utility access, including renewable and 

clean energy. 

 

Lead on Innovation Through Empire AI 

 

Last year New York State established Empire AI, a nonprofit consortium consisting of many of 

New York’s finest research institutions, which is building a world-class high-performance computing 

center dedicated to using AI for research, centered on the public good. In less than one year, the 

seven inaugural members of the Empire AI Consortium—Columbia, Cornell, New York University, 

Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute, the State University of New York (SUNY), the City University of 

New York (CUNY), and the Flatiron Institute—have made extraordinary progress: the first version 

of the Empire AI Supercomputer is now operational. 

 

Even though this initial phase is just a fraction of the computing power of the final Empire AI 

facility, it already ranks as the 245th most powerful supercomputer in the world, and its 

environmental efficiency ranks 38th in the world on TOP500’s Green 500 list. The full Empire AI 

computing center, situated on the University of Buffalo’s North Campus, will be an energy-efficient 

computing facility, sustainably powered by clean and renewable hydropower from Niagara Falls and 

utilizing heat generated from the facility to warm and cool campus buildings, importantly reducing 

the University’s dependence on fossil fuels. 

 

Empire AI has already aided incredible research. Within weeks of getting access, New York 

scientists and researchers at the consortium member institutions have started dozens of research 

projects, from climate science to cancer research, freshwater resources, social science and sustainable 

food production. The analytic capabilities of the current Empire AI supercomputer allow 

researchers to process data in a matter of weeks that their current labs would take decades—and it 

will only get faster and more powerful in the future. 

 

Turbocharge Hiring by Startups 

 

While our innovation ecosystem is strong, when small innovation businesses transition from 

receiving hands-on support from incubators to operating independently, the risk of failure can grow 

and the costs to continue scaling can prove prohibitive. 



 
150 State Street | Suite 301 Albany, NY 12207   4 
518.436.6202 
 

Governor Hochul is advancing the Companies Attracting Talent to Advance Leading Innovations 

and Scale Technologies in New York (CATALIST NY) program. CATALIST NY will allow small 

businesses that have completed a New York State incubator program to be eligible for personal 

income tax benefits to reduce the cost of hiring. By lowering the tax burden to hire new employees, 

startups can hire more seamlessly during a critical phase of their expansion, putting down stronger 

roots in New York. 

 

Transform Regional Economic Development with High-Impact Projects 

 

The Regional Economic Development Councils (REDCs) have driven significant progress across 

New York, but their current funding limits make it difficult to support large-scale, game-changing 

projects. To address this, Governor Hochul will refocus the REDC initiative on transformative 

projects that serve as high-impact economic anchors such as cultural venues, waterfront revitalization 

efforts, and mixed-use development projects. This new approach will maximize the benefits that REDC 

awards deliver for local communities and regional economies, driving growth and revitalization in every 

corner of the state. 

 

Renew our Commitment to Our State’s Capital City 

 

Albany is New York’s proud capital, as home to a vibrant community of families and businesses that 

exemplify our state. Governor Hochul has long recognized the distinct position Albany holds as the 

capital. Since taking office, Governor Hochul has directed over $4 billion in public resources into 

transformative projects in Albany. These landmark initiatives include the replacement of the Livingston 

Avenue Rail Bridge, the modernization of the Wadsworth Laboratory, the demolition of the long-blighted 

Central Warehouse, and investments in the NY CREATES Albany NanoTech Complex—now recognized 

as the flagship facility of the federal National Semiconductor Technology Center. 

 

Yet, despite its rich history and the transformative projects currently underway, Albany has been 

slow to recover from the devastating socio-economic impacts of COVID-19. And Albany has foregone 

the opportunity for a more diversified economy to fulfill the crucial responsibility of hosting the state 

government. Governor Hochul recognizes the exceptional responsibility and power of New York State 

government—the largest anchor institution in the community—to drive economic and community 

development within Albany. Under the Governor’s leadership, Albany will have a true partner in New 

York State. 

 

This year’s Executive Budget launches an inclusive, State-led initiative to invest $400 million to 

revitalize the downtown core of Albany—in partnership with local stakeholders and backed by 

significant State resources to catalyze change. This investment includes $200 million to make real 

investments into tangible strategies and projects to revitalize Albany, such as: targeted strategies that 

address public safety and quality of life; revitalizing vacant or dated anchor institutions; reinvigorating 

commercial corridors; repurposing vacant and underutilized commercial buildings for housing and other 

new uses; leveraging open spaces and key public assets; coordinating with ongoing planning efforts 

related to the redevelopment of I-787 and the Livingston Avenue rail bridge; and creating new reasons to 

work, visit, or live in downtown Albany. This historic investment also includes $150 million to renovate 

the New York State Museum and upgrade the exhibits to be more inviting to visitors, including families, 



 
150 State Street | Suite 301 Albany, NY 12207   5 
518.436.6202 
 

as well as funding for the State to temporarily supplement Albany’s public safety efforts by offering 

enhanced State Police resources to reduce crime and increase community policing in key corridors. 

 

Informed by conversations with local stakeholders, the Governor’s commitment to Albany will play out 

through a comprehensive community engagement process with the public, elected representatives, and 

community leaders to identify key opportunities to promote business development, bolster public safety, 

build out community anchors, encourage housing, and enhance affordability. 

 

Expand Alternative Project Delivery Methods 

 

State law prescribes how agencies and authorities must conduct capital project delivery. Many State 

agencies and authorities are limited to a narrow selection of delivery approaches, such as design-bid 

build. While the currently authorized methods are well suited for some projects, they are not the best 

fit across the board. Depending on a project’s size, nature, and timeline, alternative project delivery 

approaches such as progressive design build, construction manager build, and construction manager 

as constructor may be more suitable and can deliver projects more quickly and cost-effectively. 

Alternative delivery approaches also allow for expanded use of best value selection, providing a 

more level playing field for small and emerging firms and supporting increased Minority- and Women-

Owned Business Enterprise (MWBE) participation. To improve the efficiency of project delivery and 

continue supporting MWBE access to public contracts, Governor Hochul will work to amend the 

Infrastructure Investment Act and other relevant statutes to provide agencies and authorities more 

flexibility in how they deliver projects and ensure that they are able to use the best tool for the job. 

 

Engage the Dormitory Authority to Speed Municipal Projects 

 

Communities across the state need investment to build out the libraries, healthcare facilities, and higher 

education infrastructure that undergird our communities and make New York such an attractive place to 

live. Getting these projects completed more speedily and at less cost will benefit communities across the 

State. 

 

To give localities the ability to draw on new resources to accelerate project design and implementation, 

Governor Hochul will advance legislation to allow municipalities to utilize Dormitory Authority of the 

State of New York’s renowned planning, design, procurement and construction management services for 

projects. This legislative change will help interested municipalities cut more ribbons on more ambitious 

projects. 

 

Create a Pro-Housing Supply Infrastructure Fund 

 

Governor Hochul signed Executive Order 30 in July 2023 creating the Pro-Housing Community Program, 

which recognizes and rewards municipalities actively working to unlock their housing potential and 

encourages others to follow suit. In the State Fiscal Year 2025 Enacted Budget, Governor Hochul made 

the “Pro-Housing Community” designation a requirement for accessing up to $650 million in State 

discretionary programs. So far, 270 localities have been certified, with more than 420 submitting letters of 

intent from all corners of New York State. To further support localities that are doing their part to address 

the housing crisis, Governor Hochul will create a $100 million Pro-Housing Supply fund for certified 



 
150 State Street | Suite 301 Albany, NY 12207   6 
518.436.6202 
 

Pro-Housing Communities to assist with critical infrastructure projects necessary to create new housing, 

such as sewer and water infrastructure upgrades. 

 

Provide Communities Technical Assistance to Be Pro-Housing 

 

Without resources, some communities may not have the ability to design and adopt pro-housing 

policies such as master plans, zoning text updates, and streamlined permitting procedures. To help 

ensure more localities that want to promote housing growth have the ability to do so, Governor Hochul 

will provide new grant funding to offer technical assistance to communities seeking to foster 

housing growth and associated municipal development. 

 

Streamline Environmental Review for Modest Housing Development 

 

New York is streamlining regulations to expedite the construction of more homes for families and 

individuals while implementing environmental safeguards. Governor Hochul will advance proposed 

regulation to allow modestly sized home development, such as certain multi-family housing with no 

more than 10,000 square feet of gross floor area, to proceed as ‘Type II,’ which offers a simpler pathway 

towards completion. This approach not only accelerates the construction of much-needed homes but also 

addresses the critical shortage of affordable housing facing everyday New Yorkers. By thoughtfully 

streamlining the regulatory process we can facilitate the timely development of housing, making it more 

accessible to families and individuals. 

 

Launch New York State’s First Mixed-Income Revolving Loan Fund 

 

With major forthcoming economic investments in upstate New York, including Micron, the state 

continues to need an all-of-the-above approach to the housing supply to address acute housing needs and 

accommodate job growth. Too often, however, upstate communities do not have the tools to create mixed 

income rental housing, leaving many developments permit-ready but unable to secure financing. To 

bridge this gap and unlock more housing, Governor Hochul will launch the State’s first revolving loan 

fund to spur mixed-income rental development outside New York City. 

 

The fund will fill construction financing gaps by providing a lower-cost and more flexible form of 

capital than is generally available in market financing. The funding will revolve and self-sustain over 

time through repayments once projects have converted to permanent financing after construction. 

 

Double New York State Low Income Housing Credits 

 

Modeled after the federal Low Income Housing Tax Credit Program, the New York State Low 

Income Housing Tax Credit Program (SLIHC) was signed into law in 2000 and has been critical to 

supporting the development of housing for low-and middle-income households. Governor Hochul 

will build on this success by proposing to double the amount of the tax credits available through the 

SLIHC program, making it the largest state low-income housing tax credit program in America. This 

action alone will generate upwards of $210 million in private investment in affordable housing per year. 

 

 

 



 
150 State Street | Suite 301 Albany, NY 12207   7 
518.436.6202 
 

Unlock Historic Tax Credits by Decoupling and Expanding Eligibility 

 

Currently, New York State law requires Federal and State Historic Tax credits to be coupled together to 

the same investor and be available only in certain census tracts. These factors depress the economic value 

of both tax credits and needlessly turn investment away from housing projects, a problem felt especially 

acutely in upstate New York communities. Governor Hochul will propose legislation that can unlock the 

maximum value of the tax credits and eliminate the census tract eligibility requirement. 

 

Empower Communities to Redevelop Vacant Properties into Housing 

 

Many municipalities struggle to acquire and redevelop vacant and abandoned buildings. Many of 

these properties are in a significant state of disrepair due to years of neglect and are located in 

neighborhoods that lack the local economic conditions necessary to incentivize redevelopment by the 

private sector. Consequently, the investment required to redevelop these properties can exceed their value 

and the resulting funding gap prevents the property from being rehabilitated. Governor Hochul will better 

equip communities to fight back against blight while creating more affordable housing opportunities, both 

by proposing strengthening existing municipal authority to acquire vacant and abandoned buildings and 

by proposing to authorize localities across the state to adopt a tax exemption to incentivize redevelopment 

of these properties into affordable homes. 

 

Provide Child Care Construction Grants 

For hours each day, our child care facilities serve as refuges where our youngest can learn, socialize 

and be cared for. New York’s children deserve safe, comfortable facilities that can welcome every 

kind of family, but too many child care providers operate under tight margins that make it difficult 

to budget for repairs and upgrades to facilities. 

 

To facilitate child care providers’ ability to expand enrollment capacity and serve additional children, 

Governor Hochul will provide $100 million in capital grants for child care centers, counties, and 

municipalities. These funds will help ensure child care deserts continue to be addressed through the 

opening of new child care programs or through providing funds for necessary repairs and renovations at 

existing programs. 

 

Until now, child care capital programs have been reserved for child care centers, but in this year’s 

Executive Budget, Governor Hochul will also advance $10 million in funding targeted to help family 

child care programs cover small renovations and repairs that are necessary to provide safe, high quality 

child care. OCFS will administer these grants and provide technical assistance to help family child care 

providers undertake projects. 

 

Build a Statewide Data System to Improve Education and Workforce Outcomes 

A State Longitudinal Data System (SLDS) enables a state to improve its ability to answer pressing policy 

questions, assess the effectiveness of educational and workforce programs, ensure investments are 

directed toward initiatives that yield meaningful results, and better support students. New York State has 

secured federal funding to begin the process of developing and establishing a SLDS. Governor Hochul 

will introduce legislation to establish and define the SLDS, including the creation of a governance board 

to ensure data collection meets the State's privacy obligations. 



 
150 State Street | Suite 301 Albany, NY 12207   8 
518.436.6202 
 

 

Invest in Cutting-Edge Research by Funding a New York State Innovation Fund 

The Governor will continue the historic investments in higher education she has made by funding a New 

York State Innovation Fund at SUNY. This capital support will provide vital resources that will be 

directed by SUNY to the development of cutting-edge laboratory facilities and research activities. 

 

Enhance Local Food Supply Chains 

The COVID-19 pandemic exposed weaknesses in supply chains, disrupting food access and highlighting 

the need to strengthen New York's local food systems. Building on New York’s supply chain and 

processing expansions in recent years, Governor Hochul will establish the Food and Fiber Small-Scale 

Processing Grant Program to further fuel the supply of diverse products for New York’s many local 

purchasing programs. In addition, Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program benefits will be maintained, 

and Governor Hochul will expand New York’s supply of nutritious, locally grown seafood. 

 

Position New York as a Regional Leader in Fiber Production 

As the national fiber supply chain has consolidated in other portions of the United States, northeastern 

farmers have faced barriers to processing and marketing their wool and other natural fibers affordably. 

Without the necessary infrastructure, farmers often discard wool or incur high costs to get it to market. 

Meanwhile, New York's fashion leaders, eager for natural textiles, are forced to source materials 

elsewhere. To mitigate these challenges, Governor Hochul will make key investments to position New 

York as a leader in fiber production, including determining the best location and most sustainable 

operating model for a New York fiber sorting and aggregation center. 

 

Launch a Maple Industry Growth Strategy 

Home to the largest source of tappable maple trees in the nation, New York ranks second in 

national syrup production and is home to over 2,000 sugar makers. Governor Hochul will support 

New York’s unique opportunity to become the leading maple innovator, improving production 

efficiency, advancing research, and fostering unparalleled consumer loyalty to New York maple. 

 

Advance the Sustainability of New York’s Dairy Industry 

 

New York is the fifth largest milk-producing state in the nation, with dairy farming accounting for 

half of New York’s agricultural economy. Building on last year’s record investment in agricultural 

stewardship programs, Governor Hochul will provide additional funding to research and implement 

climate-resilient practices on dairy farms. 

 

Fund Free Community College in High-Demand Occupations 

 

Associates degrees facilitate entry into the workforce, increasing both likelihood of having a job and 

earnings. In addition to the inherent value of an associates degree, State University of New York 

(SUNY) and City University of New York (CUNY) associates degree programs are deeply integrated 

into industry pipelines. Onondaga Community College’s Micron Cleanroom Simulation Lab will 

prepare students for careers in semiconductor and microelectronic industries. With the Governor’s 



 
150 State Street | Suite 301 Albany, NY 12207   9 
518.436.6202 
 

support, CUNY is expanding apprenticeship programs to all seven community colleges. An 

integrated part of the degree path, these paid apprenticeships allow students to earn nine credits 

while they are employed by a partner company; 88 percent of apprentices are committed as full-time 

hires. 

 

Building on Governor Hochul’s historic investments in SUNY and CUNY, New York State will 

make community college free for students ages 25-55 pursuing select associates degrees in high demand 

occupations, including nursing, teaching, technology, engineering, and more. The State will cover the 

costs of tuition, books, and fees for participants in this program and will increase funding for career 

support infrastructure to connect students with job opportunities. A similar program in Massachusetts has 

been very successful, as have SUNY and CUNY’s existing programs that provide similar wraparound 

services. CUNY estimates that the return on investment for each dollar invested in one such program is 

$21, with $16 going to graduates’ future earnings and $5 going to taxpayers in the form of tax revenue 

and lower social services costs. 

 

Free SUNY and CUNY community college will facilitate thousands of students getting associates 

degrees in high-demand fields. 

 

Facilitate New Training Pathways into High-Demand Occupations 

 

Many businesses are struggling to fill open positions, making it more important than ever to 

understand shifts in the labor market and develop effective strategies to connect individuals with in 

demand 

 

occupations. At the same time, the future workforce—today’s students—need hands-on 

experience, mentorship, and skill development. 

 

To address these challenges, the Department of Labor (DOL) will launch a new initiative to support 

employer-led training. Participating businesses will be reimbursed 50 percent of the trainee wages 

during the program, with the requirement that these employees remain on the job for at least one 

year after completing the training. Additionally, DOL will collaborate with school districts and 

businesses to recruit high school students for a summer work experience program in high-demand 

fields. Businesses participating in the program will receive reimbursement for 50 percent of the 

students’ stipends during the summer. 

 

Create New Registered Apprenticeships and Pre-Apprenticeships in High-Demand Fields 

 

Nationwide, 93 percent of workers who complete registered apprenticeships gain employment, and 

annual average starting wage post-apprenticeship is $77,000. While there are nearly 18,000 apprentices 

across New York, opportunities exist to expand this gold-standard apprenticeship model beyond the 

skilled construction trades. 

 

Governor Hochul recognizes the need to develop programs to meet the workforce demands of 

high-growth occupations by incentivizing businesses and supporting participants, while focusing on 

diversification and expansion of programs. To that end, the Governor will provide funding for 

providers of registered apprenticeships and pre-apprenticeships in the high-demand occupations, to 



 
150 State Street | Suite 301 Albany, NY 12207   10 
518.436.6202 
 

cover partial apprentice wages, training costs, and for underrepresented groups, wraparound 

services. 

 

Expand Cybersecurity Careers with Degree Reform and New Fellowships 

 

Currently, many cyber and technology jobs require a four-year degree. By excluding candidates 

without four-year college degrees, employers overlook millions of Americans who are trained 

through alternative routes and have the valuable skills, talent, and drive to succeed in today’s 

workforce. Governor Hochul will reform the way executive agencies hire cybersecurity and technology 

talent by removing four-year degree requirements for many entry-level and early-career positions and will 

create a cybersecurity fellows program with SUNY and CUNY community colleges that places graduates 

in two-year jobs in State government. Additionally, Governor Hochul will work with private companies 

to similarly reduce or remove certain educational requirements to create more entry points for New 

Yorkers graduating from community and technical colleges. 

 

Diversify the Artificial Intelligence Pipeline with Artificial Intelligence Prep 

 

As the Artificial Intelligence (AI) sector continues to grow at a rapid pace, it is critical the technology 

developed incorporates a broad range of perspectives from a diverse group of innovators. However, 

systemic biases and legacy workforce training practices tend to leave some populations behind in 

training and opportunity. To equalize access to AI careers, Empire State Development Corporation 

(ESD) will launch AI Prep: a workforce development initiative focused on the training and placement of 

disadvantaged college students into AI jobs. This free training will focus on applied problem solving and 

include mentorship support from leading technology companies. Students will receive a stipend and other 

wraparound support to participate in online courses in AI—developed by leading researchers and industry 

experts—allowing them to engage in real-world machine learning projects leading to internship 

opportunities at leading New York technology companies. 

 

Leverage Federal Support to Expand Health, Behavioral, and Social Care 

Workforce 

 

Strategies designed to support training and education for new workers as well as support career 

advancement for existing workers, such as tuition payments and student loan repayment, have been 

shown to improve retention and help reduce worker shortages. As part of the State’s federal Medicaid 

1115 waiver, New York is implementing two workforce programs. The Career Pathways Training 

program is funding educational and career support services for new and advancing health, behavioral 

health, and social care workers. Through three regional Workforce Investment Organizations, the 

program covers tuition, textbooks, and educational and career supports and place individuals in high-

demand titles. Participants will make a three-year service commitment to work at providers that serve at 

least 30 percent Medicaid or uninsured members. New York is also launching the Student Loan 

Repayment Program, which will provide loan payments for psychiatrists, primary care physicians, 

dentists, nurse practitioners, and pediatric clinical nurse specialists who make a four year commitment to 

work at providers that serve at least 30 percent Medicaid or uninsured members. 

 

 

 



 
150 State Street | Suite 301 Albany, NY 12207   11 
518.436.6202 
 

Deploy State Funding to Support Healthcare Training Programs 

 

Governor Hochul will expand support for healthcare training programs under the Increasing Training 

Capacity in Statewide Healthcare Facilities grant program, with a distinct focus on nursing training 

programs. The State will provide grants for regional programs that prepare and support healthcare 

students through the Healthcare Training and Life-skills Program, covering costs like child care, 

transportation, and tutoring. Governor Hochul will provide support for Area Health Education Centers, 

which are local training programs that recruit younger individuals from underrepresented populations into 

healthcare professions. In addition, New York will launch Health Workforce Connects, a portal that will 

engage individuals in new and growing careers in healthcare. 

 

Expand Alternative Project Delivery Methods 

 

State law prescribes how agencies and authorities must conduct capital project delivery. Many State 

agencies and authorities are limited to a narrow selection of delivery approaches, such as design-bidbuild. 

While the currently authorized methods are well suited for some projects, they are not the best fit across 

the board. Depending on a project’s size, nature, and timeline, alternative project delivery approaches 

such as progressive design build, construction manager build, and construction manager as constructor 

may be more suitable and can deliver projects more quickly and cost-effectively.  

 

Alternative delivery approaches also allow for expanded use of best value selection, providing a 

more level playing field for small and emerging firms and supporting increased Minority- and 

Women-Owned Business Enterprise (MWBE) participation. To improve the efficiency of project 

delivery and continue supporting MWBE access to public contracts, Governor Hochul will work to 

amend the Infrastructure Investment Act and other relevant statutes to provide agencies and 

authorities more flexibility in how they deliver projects and ensure that they are able to use the best 

tool for the job. 

 

Increase Opportunities for Minority- and Women-Owned Business Enterprises 

in State Procurement 

 

Public procurement in New York State is subject to a wide array of reviews and approvals. To 

increase the participation of MWBEs in State contracting while also expediting the procurement 

process, agencies and authorities are fully or partially exempted from certain procurement requirements 

when making discretionary purchases of up to $750,000 from certified MWBEs. Building on the success 

of this model, Governor Hochul proposes to increase the discretionary purchase thresholds for MWBEs to 

$1.5 million, bringing the State's threshold into alignment with those of MTA and New York City. 

Standardization of these thresholds will increase efficiency while supporting the Governor's commitment 

to expanding opportunities for MWBE firms. 

 

Engage the Dormitory Authority to Speed Municipal Projects 

 

Communities across the state need investment to build out the libraries, healthcare facilities, and 

higher education infrastructure that undergird our communities and make New York such an attractive 

place to live. Getting these projects completed more speedily and at less cost will benefit communities 

across the State. 



 
150 State Street | Suite 301 Albany, NY 12207   12 
518.436.6202 
 

 

To give localities the ability to draw on new resources to accelerate project design and 

implementation, Governor Hochul will advance legislation to allow municipalities to utilize 

Dormitory Authority of the State of New York’s renowned planning, design, procurement and 

construction management services for projects. This legislative change will help interested 

municipalities cut more ribbons on more ambitious projects. 

 

Expand Pre-Qualified List Authority 

 

Vendor pre-qualification is the process of evaluating vendors and contractors to ensure they meet 

specific qualifications before they are able to bid on a project. State law authorizes many 

municipalities across the state to make use of vendor pre-qualification practices to ensure that 

contracts are awarded only to highly capable and qualified contractors who are able to deliver high 

quality work on time and within budget. State agencies and authorities lack similar broad authority to 

pre-qualify vendors and are generally required instead to make awards to the lowest responsive and 

responsible bidder among all respondents, which can pose a particular challenge for emerging and 

MWBE firms. In order to streamline the procurement process by ensuring bids reviewed and selected are 

from suitable vendors, Governor Hochul will expand the authority for use of prequalified lists to State 

agencies and authorities. 

 

Create a State Office of Innovation and Efficiency 

 

State agencies often struggle to redesign operations and implement improvements due to limited inhouse 

expertise. To address this, Governor Hochul will establish a dedicated office to support agencies by 

providing internal consulting, centralized project support, and performance tracking. The office will issue 

annual progress reports, ensuring transparent and measurable service improvements for New Yorkers. 

 

Invest in a Sustainable Future for Businesses 

 

New York State's ambitious climate law requires a major reduction in greenhouse gas emissions, 

including those emitted by hydrofluorocarbons. These potent greenhouse gases are commonly used 

in refrigeration systems. However, transitioning to more environmentally friendly refrigerants can be 

challenging, particularly for small businesses. 

 

To ensure a just and equitable transition while safeguarding our environment, Governor Hochul will 

propose a new grant program that will provide crucial grants to businesses, such as food banks and 

grocery stores in underserved areas, to replace their outdated, high-emission refrigeration equipment 

with newer, low-emission alternatives. This vital support will empower smaller businesses to comply 

with evolving climate regulations and thrive in a more sustainable future. 

 

Launch the New York Nuclear Energy Master Plan 

 

Under Governor Hochul’s leadership, New York State is taking bold action to develop new clean 

energy resources to support our mid-century decarbonization goal. After more than a decade of flat 

energy usage, owing to hard-won gains in energy efficiency, forecasts now show demand for electricity 

will rise significantly over the coming years to keep pace with new industries and demands, including the 



 
150 State Street | Suite 301 Albany, NY 12207   13 
518.436.6202 
 

semiconductor and advanced manufacturing sectors, as well as electrification of buildings and 

transportation. 

 

To meet this growing demand for dispatchable clean energy generation, New York will develop a 

Master Plan for Responsible Advanced Nuclear Development that will guide any nuclear projects, 

and as part of that process New York will help lead a multi-state Consortium on Nuclear Energy 

focused on driving down costs and risk-sharing. 

 

New York State will also support an application by Constellation Energy, the owner of New York’s 

operating nuclear plants, to the United States Department of Energy for a planning grant to explore 

the possibility of bringing a small modular reactor online. 

 

Help Businesses Recover After Disasters 

 

Adverse weather events can severely disrupt small businesses, causing damage to inventory, reduced 

consumer demand, and employee layoffs. Governor Hochul proposes modernizing the Jobs Retention Tax 

Credit Program to better support businesses in disaster-affected areas. 

 

The updated program will lower the eligibility threshold to include businesses with ten or more 

employees, allowing small businesses to participate for the first time. The Governor’s expansion also 

removes industry-specific limitations, allowing all affected businesses to seek support after an emergency 

event. 

 

By providing a tax credit to impacted businesses for employee wages, this modernization will help 

more businesses recover from emergencies, retain employees, and contribute to their communities’ 

recovery efforts. 

 

Clean Up Our Past Via the State Superfund 

 

New York’s Superfund Program has been critical in cleaning hazardous waste sites for over 40 years, 

but emerging contaminants like per-and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) and evolving development 

needs require modernization. To address these challenges, Governor Hochul will reauthorize the program 

with new tools to accelerate cleanups, enabling contaminated sites to be repurposed for productive use, 

including manufacturing, clean energy, housing, and other needs. 

 

The updated law will prioritize sites posing the greatest public health risks, especially in disadvantaged 

communities that have faced disproportionate pollution. 

 

Protect New York Farmland 

 

The 2022 Census of Agriculture reveals a concerning trend in United States agriculture: fewer farms, 

reduced farmland, and larger average farm sizes. New York is experiencing these challenges at an 

accelerated rate, with a 14 percent loss in farms and a 9 percent loss in farmland between 2012 and 

2022. While the state achieved an impressive milestone of over 100,000 acres of protected farmland 

in 2023, more than 98 percent of New York’s farmland remains unprotected. To support New York's 

agricultural sector for future generations, Governor Hochul will make investments to 



 
150 State Street | Suite 301 Albany, NY 12207   14 
518.436.6202 
 

improve tracking of lost farmland, and capacity building within New York’s network of community led 

land trusts to efficiently execute Environmental Bond Act dollars allocated for farmland 

protection. 


